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The Atrium, Fern Room, Christchurch 13.11.14 

  [11.00 am] 
 
MADAM REGISTRAR:  Good morning everybody, a friendly reminder, 

please ensure your cell phones are turned off and this pre-hearing is 
now in session. 5 

 
CHAIRPERSON:  Good morning everybody and thank you for coming.  I 

understand that everybody has filled in the register so we will take that 
as a record of appearances.  If anybody in any part of the room has not 
filled that in, if they would be good enough to do that at the first break 10 
we have this morning.   

 
 Before going on I would just like to introduce the Friend of Submitter, 

Dr Brent Cowie, who is sitting in the front row here.  If there are any 
unrepresented submitters here today the role of the Friend of Submitter 15 
is to assist you to understand the process, to assist you in carrying out 
any of the directions that may be made in relation to the hearing.  So he 
will be available not only today but at any time for you to contact but I 
would suggest that if you want to utilise his services, and I recommend 
you do so, that you sit down with him, make contact before you leave 20 
today and it can be followed up from there, thank you. 

 
 The first item on the agenda is the scope of hearing and the relevant 

definitions.  This sort of came up a bit late in the piece because there is 
definitions scattered through this that are relevant strategic directions.  25 
Mr Winchester, I understand that by and large you have separated out 
as many of those as you can? 

 
MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, that’s correct, sir. 
 30 
CHAIRPERSON:  It is part of the way that this process is laid out, but I will 

hear from parties in a moment, but I think we are just going to have to 
hear submissions on the definitions and make decisions on them but 
with the caveat they may have to be revisited under the reconsideration 
of powers later, depending what comes out in hearings and evidence on 35 
other chapters.  So do you want to speak to that first, Mr Winchester?  I 
mean has the information you have supplied to us been supplied to all 
the parties? 

 
MR WINCHESTER:  No, sir, it has been supplied to the secretariat so I am 40 

happy for the secretariat to distribute that as required. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.   
 
MR WINCHESTER:   I don’t have any specific comment to make other than to 45 

observe that, as your Honour has said - - - 
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CHAIRPERSON:  Could we just pause a moment, I don’t want people to stand 

today, when we get into the formal hearing we will go into that process, 
but we just lower all the microphones because everything is being 
recorded and transcribed? And we do have a roving microphone when 5 
there is anyone over here, before you speak could just wait until you 
get that microphone when we come to it. 

 
MR WINCHESTER:  Sir, shall I carry on? 
 10 
CHAIRPERSON:   Yes, please. 
 
MR WINCHESTER:  Thank you.  I think in terms of the practicalities, as 

your Honour has indicated you intend to hear evidence about those 
definitions, I guess there may be an issue in terms of the strategic 15 
directions chapter, people may have submitted on what those 
definitions should encompass rather than the role they play in the 
strategic definitions chapter.  That would be up to individual submitters 
to determine whether they want to in fact call evidence about their 
strategic role, as it were, as opposed to what they mean.  But I think, as 20 
your Honour has observed, for practicality reasons you can go ahead 
and make decisions on those definitions and if necessary revisit them. 

 
CHAIRPERSON:   Yes, I think there has to be some discipline around it in the 

approach of the parties to limiting it to its relevance to the strategic 25 
directions chapter rather than revisiting or visiting what is something 
that needs to be revisited later under the individual chapters.  That is 
really the point, isn’t it? 

 
MR WINCHESTER:   As I understand it, sir, and I agree with that approach. 30 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   Anything else? 
 
MR WINCHESTER:   No, thank you, sir. 
 35 
CHAIRPERSON:  All right. I think we will just do this in a geographic fashion 

so the table behind, is there anything on definitions?  You may remain 
seated. 

 
  [11.05 am] 40 
 
MR VAN DER WAL:   No, your Honour, apart from just noting that on behalf 

of Faulks Investments I respectfully concur with the approach of being 
able to address those aspects of the definition which have impact on 
strategic directions at this stage, sir. 45 
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CHAIRPERSON:   I am sorry, just for the transcript, when you speak if you 
would just introduce yourselves so we can pick that up. 

 
MR VAN DER WAL:  Perhaps I should do so, J M van der Wal for Faulks 

Investments Limited. 5 
 
MR RACHLIN:   Michael Rachlin for Canterbury Regional Council and we 

are comfortable with the approach that has been set out by the City 
Council. 

 10 
CHAIRPERSON:   The table behind? 
 
MR LE MARQUAND:   David le Marquand for the oil companies, I guess the 

position being that if a definition is pertinent to the argument and 
pivotal to it then there needs to be some exploration of that.  So that 15 
appears to be the situation and we are quite happy to run with that. 

 
CHAIRPERSON:   We will come from the back forward, Ms Steven, have 

you? 
 20 
MS STEVEN:   Yes, thank you.  PA Steven, look I have nothing to add, I am 

quite comfortable with the position that the Council are advancing. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you. 
 25 
MR CLEARY:   G J Cleary for Eros Clearwater Holdings and Clearwater Land 

Holdings, and no particular issue with what the Council is proposing. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   The next one? 
 30 
MR WILLIAMS:   Ben Williams for various parties, nothing further to add 

either, sir. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.  Mr Radich? 
 35 
MR RADICH:   Yes, thank you very much, Paul Radich for the Crown through 

CERA.  Really I think that’s the most sensible way to go if it could be 
treated, sir, in the sense that you have explained it, which is we will be 
dealing here with a set of provisions that don’t have rules attached to 
them.  And so when we are looking at the definitions themselves we are 40 
going to clearly, during the course of the hearing processes, be dealing 
with them more specifically when we are looking at rules which rarely 
(ph 2.27) really touch upon them rather than in the general way that we 
are looking at them here.  However, I think that’s the best way to deal 
with it, deal with them broadly, deal with them insofar as they are 45 
relevant to this section but reserve, as of course the hearing procedures 
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make provision, the Panel’s ability to come back to them and revisit 
them if in the course of looking at specific rules they need some 
adjustment over the treatment they have been given at this early stage. 

 
CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.  Anybody in - - - 5 
 
MR ENGLISH:  My name is Richard English, I am a member of Ilam and 

Upper Riccarton Residents Association.  We have submitted on some 
of the definitions.  We find it extremely difficult to understand how the 
Panel is going make a rational decision on what appear to be cherry 10 
picked definitions, our submissions are interrelated and the definitions 
are likewise interrelated.  We certainly support the Crown’s position in 
requesting, if no process can be arrived at, to revisit our submissions as 
the process goes along because, as I have said, the definitions are very 
much interrelated. 15 

 
CHAIRPERSON:  I think it is fair to say that the Order in Council and the 

reconsideration or revisiting powers in it recognise the difficulties that 
this form of hearing creates and gives the Panel the ability to do that, 
and I think that is something that you will find we are going to have to 20 
exercise. 

 
MR ENGLISH:  Yes, I recognise that and thank you for doing that and I would 

like to make a comment at the end of this pre-hearing about the general 
process if I may. 25 

 
CHAIRPERSON:  By all means. Anything else from over this side on this 

topic?   
 
 For the Minute arising from today we record that we will approach the 30 

definitions issue on the basis that the parties are able to address and call 
evidence on definitions relevant to strategic direction, recognising that 
strategic directions are somewhat more high level and it is more in that 
setting we would be looking to consider evidence about that.  And also 
recognising that there may well be a need, under the reconsideration 35 
powers, to come back to any decisions that we have to make about 
definitions in the strategic directions chapter. 

 
  [11.10 am] 
 40 
 Item 3, draft hearing procedure.  Firstly matters arising from the 

informal pre-hearing meeting.  Mr Winchester anything from the 
Council? 

 
MR WINCHESTER:   No sir, thank you. 45 
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MR VAN DER WAL:   Sir, at this point I just wish to - - - 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   I’m going to have to ask you to identify yourself each time 

just for the transcript I’m sorry. 
 5 
MR VAN DER WAL:   J M van der Wal.  I act for Faulks Investments Limited 

but also for a number of other submitters with some wider procedural 
concerns and just wish to record that out of the omission of a number of 
those parties from that initial meeting they have concerns about not 
being aware of when their part of the hearing is likely to be heard and 10 
feel there are some significant challenges for them at present to be able 
to participate fairly at this stage, sir. 

 
CHAIRPERSON:   Well there’s significant challenges is for everybody in this 

process I’m afraid, but we have got the hearing schedule listed and we 15 
will come to that later on in the course of the hearing today.  Anything 
from the Regional Council? 

 
MR RACHLIN:   No, sir. 
 20 
CHAIRPERSON:   The oil company? 
 
MR LE MARQUAND:   No, sir. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   Anyone else in the back row?  The other back row?  Ms 25 

Steven? 
 
MS STEVEN:   Yes, I just wonder whether and I suppose in a sense this flows 

from that first meeting and it just relates to the direction to specify 
relief and you’ll be aware that many of the parties are now in receipt of 30 
a re-drafted strategic chapter document which has been circulated by 
Ms Semple and others and really the only issue that I have with that, if 
it’s appropriate that I address you on that now, is this that it’s been 
given to us a clean version of the chapter and what strikes me is that 
it’s very difficult to identify what the changes are and the original 35 
submission that the change is able to be attributed to.  For example we 
don’t know who the submitters are that have been involved in that 
combined drafting process.  And also to identify the particular 
submission point and whether there are any other outstanding 
submission points arising from that original submission that aren’t 40 
addressed in that revised chapter.   

 
 Even though it might be of some assistance to the Panel I think it’s 

made it reasonably difficult for other parties who were not involved in 
that drafting process to actually sort of work out and unravel what of 45 
the original submissions that they may have had an interest in are 
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addressed in that document and what remain outstanding.  And I’d also 
say that one issue that – all the jurisdiction around scope that still 
remains in this process and because of the way it’s been presented to us 
it’s difficult to form a view about whether any of the changes are 
actually within the scope of that original submission. 5 

 
CHAIRPERSON:   We’ve got specification of relief to come up and there are 

others issues that have arisen from the Council’s perspective around 
that initiative to be cooperative, but I have an issue with it as well.  So 
we will revisit it.  That’s not a document that I have seen and if it 10 
confuses things rather than makes them clearer then it doesn’t meet any 
purpose at all, but I’m sure we can address that.  When we come to that 
particular topic. 

 
MS STEVEN:   Yes, thank you sir. 15 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   Anything else in the back row?  Ms Semple, Mr Williams? 
 
MS SEMPLE:   No, sir. 
 20 
MR WILLIAMS:   No. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Radich? 
 
MR RADICH:   No, sir, thank you. 25 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   Anything from?  Thank you.  The next issue is time limits 

for cross-examination.  We, as you know, have such a tight hearing 
frame we have to impose time limits.  We notice that we don’t yet 
know the full list of witnesses that are going to be called and we’ll 30 
come back to that in a moment.  Some parties have indicated they’re 
calling witnesses.  Others have not indicated either way yet.  Some 
parties have named their witnesses and the Council and CERA are 
certainly in that group.  Others have not named their witnesses.  Which 
makes this is a little difficult. 35 

 
  [11.15 am] 
 
 But our initial position is that there will be necessity to give notice of 

leave to cross-examine three clear days before the commencement of 40 
the hearing.  We are minded to limit cross-examination at the moment, 
and we will have submissions from you, to 15 minutes and we also 
wondered in the light of the fact that this is a strategic directed chapter, 
and we’re talking only about this chapter, quite what value parties may 
see in cross-examining planning and indeed even economists’ 45 
evidence, but particularly planners. 
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 So we’ll go to you first Mr Winchester again. 
 
MR WINCHESTER:   Sir, quite happy with a three working days’ notice.  

Obviously I think it’s essential that parties identify who they wish to 5 
question.  In terms of the 15 minute cross-examination, again from the 
Council’s perspective perfectly content with that.  I think we’d 
previously discussed 30 minutes but - - - 

 
CHAIRPERSON:   We had, but then we looked at the number of parties 10 

calling witnesses. 
 
MR WINCHESTER:   Certainly.  Well I think it’s obviously incumbent on 

parties to try and coordinate and not overlap where possible and 
presumably as we’re working through these processes in the 15 
background, and you’ve heard from Ms Steven about provisions which 
have been circulated amongst some parties, hopefully things do get 
narrowed down and boiled down to the extent that 15 minutes should 
be ample and I’m assuming that’s per counsel? 

 20 
CHAIRPERSON:   Yes. 
 
MR WINCHESTER:   Quite content with that, sir, thank you. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   Mr van der Wal? 25 
 
MR VAN DER WAL:   J van der Wal, Faulks Investment Limited.  Sir, I 

likewise have no issue with the three days’ notice for cross-
examination.  I do think that there will be possibly some scope for 
useful cross-examination of planning witnesses as well, sir.   30 

 
CHAIRPERSON:   Right. 
 
MR VAN DER WAL:   Again just recording that a time limit is never ideal, 

but ultimately recognising that it’s a matter for this Board as to what 35 
that time limit is going to be. 

 
CHAIRPERSON:   No time limits are not ideal in cross-examination either 

because they tend to wander don’t they?  Thank you.  Mr Rachlin? 
 40 
MR RACHLIN:   The Regional Council won’t be calling any expert witnesses 

so we won’t be getting involved in the cross-examinations so we’ll 
leave it to the other parties. 

 
CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you. 45 
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MR LE MARQUAND:   Excuse me, sir.  Just a matter of clarification.  Are 
you going to be exercising judgment on whether there are applications 
for cross-examination in deciding whether that – or it is going to be just 
anybody who applies, just to clarify that? 

 5 
CHAIRPERSON:   Well, when it’s leave there is a judgment call about 

whether it will be granted or not. 
 
MR LE MARQUAND:   Okay, that’s fine. 
 10 
CHAIRPERSON:   The inclination will be that we will not fetter parties in 

doing so, but if the application for leave is on totally specious grounds 
or something like that it just covers it off that’s all. 

 
MR LE MARQUAND:   Thank you. 15 
 
MR SMITH:   P M Smith, counsel for David Mason and others.  Sir, I appear 

not in relation to the strategic directions (INDISTINCT 3.33) natural 
hazards and I’m just trying to clarify that any decisions in relation to 
procedures in relation to strategic directions will not be set in stone - - - 20 

 
CHAIRPERSON:   This is strategic directions only.  And for each of the 

chapters there will be another pre-hearing meeting and as and where 
required changes or refinements to the procedures will be made for 
those specific chapters.  So this is only strategic direction. 25 

 
MR SMITH:   Thank you, sir. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   So this is only strategic direction.  We understand that 

when you get into some of the expert witnesses in those other areas 30 
15 minutes for example may not be suitable.  So this is only strategic 
direction. 

 
MR SMITH:   Thank you, sir. 
 35 
CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Steven? 
 
MS STEVEN:   I’m comfortable with the direction, sir. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.  Anyone else in the background? 40 
 
MS STEVEN:   I’m not calling any witnesses either for any of my clients.  I’m 

representing a number of parties here today but my involvement will be 
confined to legal submissions. 

 45 
CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Semple?  Mr Williams? 
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MR CLEARY:   It’s G J Cleary. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   Sorry. 
 5 
MR CLEARY:   G J Cleary for Eros and Clearwater Holdings.  We’re not 

intending to call any expert witnesses.  But I have to say that we do 
have one potential witness on standby and it kind of depends 
essentially on what the Council actually says in their evidence.  But 
fundamentally the issue, it is a legal issue. 10 

 
CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.  Well you’ve got a date by which you have to 

file evidence by if you’re going to. 
 
MR CLEARY:   25th, yes, thank you. 15 
 
  [11.20am] 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Williams, Ms Semple? 
 20 
MR WILLIAMS:   Probably okay with the 15 minutes (INDISTINCT 0.12) 

but just conscious and particularly in the case of the Airport and Port, 
there are a number of witnesses appearing and whether provision needs 
to be made or need to be reserved for parties to ask for a bit more time. 

 25 
CHAIRPERSON:   You can always make applications to the Panel on 

anything.  Ms Semple. 
 
MS SEMPLE:   I have nothing further to add, sir. 
 30 
MR RADICH:   And I think the people (INDISTINCT 0.35) of course a lot of 

the witnesses are appropriate.  The only matter, sir, that - - - 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   Appropriate in those circumstances is a sliding scale, 

Mr Radich. 35 
 
MR RADICH:   Thank you.  The only matter I might raise just for 

consideration is in turns of the notice to give cross-examination which 
at the moment, in the second Procedural Minute, is set for 
27 November being the same day as the rebuttal evidence is due, and it 40 
may well be seeing rebuttal evidence, that the need to cross-examine 
disappears in some cases, and I just wonder – I know the hearing 
schedule is so very tight, I wonder if there is any room at all for there to 
be a – even a morning versus afternoon gap between rebuttal evidence 
and the cross-examination notices.  But it may be the Council think it is 45 
too tight. 
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CHAIRPERSON:   I think in the circumstances of the strategic directions 

chapter where we have got such a tight lead-in, I don’t think for myself 
we have that scope.  But the Panel would always be delighted to 
receive, even an oral application to withdraw Mr Radich. 5 

 
MR RADICH:   Yes, that is fine sir, thank you. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   Now anything over here? 
 10 
MR ENSOR:   Tim Ensor for the Canterbury Aggregate Producers Group.  Just 

interested in choosing whether to cross-examine or otherwise, that the 
evidence is made available as promptly as possible after the date that it 
is lodged, the 26th in the morning potentially. 

 15 
CHAIRPERSON:   We will come to that later, it will be posted on the website 

but we will come to the actual direction around that later. 
 
 Anything else? 
 20 
MS DEWAR:   Amanda Dewar for Ngai Tahu Property Progressive 

Enterprises and Tao Nan Ngai Tahu, I just wonder that if there is going 
to be some sharing of witnesses, we may be able to divvy up and 
Council could cross-examine different witnesses and if that was the 
case, we could aggregate the 15 minutes but have one witness for half 25 
an hour, but as long as it does to increase the time overall per Counsel. 

 
CHAIRPERSON:   We would expect that from Counsel in his hearing. 
 
MS DEWAR:   Thank you, sir. 30 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   In any hearings, indeed.  Thank you. 
 
 I think – the Judge has reminded me and it is quite proper.  If you are in 

that situation, you should include it in your leave application and say 35 
that three or four of us have got together, I am going to do a half hour 
of this witness which is our two 15 minutes et cetera, and we will deal 
with it on that basis, and 15 minutes is a time limit, but if there are 
good grounds demonstrated in the course of the cross-examination that 
it needs to spill over, that will be left to our discretion at the time. 40 

 
 So we will confirm that leave to cross-examination is to be filed three 

working days before the hearing, that parties if they wish to aggregate, 
the cross-examination duty should notify in that leave application and 
that cross-examination will be limited to 15 minutes per counsel subject 45 
to the aggregation point.  And the other comment I have already made. 
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 The next topic is any other matters, and I just want to discuss firstly, 

submissions. 
 
 What the Panel would like to see and I would like to hear your views 5 

on this, is that the opening is a very brief overview of the facts in the 
law and by very brief, I mean very brief, and that we give you more 
time, in your closing legal submissions, which is more useful anyway 
because you have heard the evidence, there has been cross-examination 
and those closing legal submissions will be in a stronger position. 10 

 
  [11.25 am] 
 
 If there are people who are only going to be making legal submissions, 

they may want to consider saving the whole thing until the end, but I 15 
will hear from you anyway and see what the reaction to this proposal is.  

 
 Mr Winchester? Obviously the major players like yourself and the 

Government through CERA will probably need a little more time and 
multi-represented parties a little more time but we will come to time 20 
limits after we deal with the suggested principle, that the openings are 
brief and you save your powder for the closing submissions. 

 
MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, sir.  Well, I suppose – I mean, in the context of the 

Strategic Directions chapter, a lot of the content is driven by higher 25 
order documents and we can of course address the Panel on those legal 
requirements in terms of the RPS recovery plans and those sorts of 
things. 

 
 I suppose most of those legal points should be pretty obvious and it 30 

may be that it assists the Panel to not be overburdened with legal 
submissions at the outset because there will be plenty of other material 
for the Panel to consider in terms of evidence.   

 
 So if that assists the Panel in getting to the heart of the evidence more 35 

quickly and trying to distill down the key differences in the expert 
evidence, that may be quite an efficient way of dealing with things and 
I guess to the extent it provides Counsel with a little more time to 
develop their legal arguments. 

 40 
CHAIRPERSON:   I think given the timeframes that is an important point.  It is 

just not for the Panel’s benefit, I think it is always beneficial for 
Counsel to have a little extra time to prepare their legal submissions, 
but secondly, they tend to be more focused and more assistant to the 
adjudicative body if they follow the evidence, and the 45 
cross-examination in particular.  
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MR WINCHESTER:   Agreed, sir, so in terms of that suggestion, I think the 

City would be perfectly - - - 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   We will come back to timeframes in a moment but in 5 

principle, you would accept that? 
 
MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, sir, yes, absolutely. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.  Mr van der Wal. 10 
 
MR VAN DER WAL:   Sir, I have no issues with that approach, sir.  Just 

wondering if there is a scope, certainly in terms of the legal 
submissions for written submissions to be provided in advance, not of 
cross-examination but a certain timeframe to be set that - - - 15 

 
CHAIRPERSON:   Don’t worry, all of the submissions are going to be in 

writing in advance. 
 
MR VAN DER WAL:   Thank you, sir. 20 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   And what we will be looking for is you to speak to them 

and so that is the time limit of speaking to the written submissions, but 
we will come to the dates and other matters around that in a moment, 
but in principle you agree with this approach? 25 

 
MR VAN DER WAL:   Yes, sir, I do. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.  Regional Council. 
 30 
MR………:   (INDISTINCT 3.06). 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   The back row, you are fine.  Thank you, Ms Steven? 
 
MS STEVEN:   Sir, I am quite comfortable with filing submissions at the close 35 

of the hearing rather than doing an opening. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   Right, thank you.  Ms Semple, Mr Williams. 
 
MS SEMPLE:   Yes, sir, I am comfortable with that approach as well.  The 40 

only question that I have is around whether we are talking about written 
closings or simply verbal closings at the end or a combination of both, 
and that probably comes back to the timeframe question? 
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CHAIRPERSON:   Well look perhaps at this stage, because we have not 
finalised it yet, but our thinking is, is to try and complete the evidence 
before Christmas - - - 

 
MS SEMPLE:   The Christmas break. 5 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   To complete it in time that would give Counsel a period of 

four or five days to file their written legal submissions and then 
convene in early January, and I am sorry about this, but we have no 
alternative, so it is our Christmas holiday as well as yours, to speak to 10 
those submissions. 

 
MS SEMPLE:   Yes, sir. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   And we will come back to that, but that is the way we are 15 

seeing it at the moment.  
 
 Now, we have got to move a bit further through this process to actually 

finalise that but that is where we are coming from. 
 20 
MS SEMPLE:  Yes, sir, that is what I anticipated and I have no problem with 

that. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  Mr Williams? 
 25 
MR WILLIAMS:   Probably no fundamental issue, it probably comes back to 

my earlier comment re leave, and I just would not want to be in a 
position where we ended up at the end of the hearing, or end of this 
session anyway, effectively being high-jacked by new issues appearing 
in other submitters closing legal submissions. 30 

 
CHAIRPERSON:   Well, I have indicated to you that they will be at the, what 

we hope works out, be filed before Christmas.  You have the chance to 
make oral submissions, so that is where you address such issues. 

 35 
  [11.30 am] 
 
MR WILLIAMS:   Yes, no, thank you. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Radich? 40 
 
MR RADICH:   I agree entirely, sir. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you. 
 45 
 Over here, anything from anybody? 
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MS DEWAR:   I merely want to say that I agree with the approach of having 

very brief legal submissions opening and having closing as per what 
you have suggested. 

 5 
CHAIRPERSON:  Thank you. 
 
 Anything over here?  All right, thank you. 
 
 Well, we will agree then that, and part of the procedural minute will be 10 

that, parties will make brief opening submissions on fact and law, they 
will then, after the close of evidence, file written legal submissions and 
then will have the opportunity to speak to those legal submissions and 
to address any other issues that may arise in the submissions of others. 

 15 
 Perhaps I should just add into that that the lay submitters here today 

will be fitted into the schedule and will have the opportunity to speak to 
their submissions in the course of the hearing, whether they wish to 
make legal submissions or not, you would need to indicate to us at the 
close of the hearing.  Generally such things are limited to those who 20 
reserve the right to make legal submissions or take part in cross-
examination, but that is not necessarily a hindrance.   

 
 Okay, thank you.  What we had in mind was that we will call in the 

major players, the Council, CERA and those that are representing 25 
multiple parties should have 40 minutes to speak to their written 
submissions and that the other parties 20 minutes, and rather than go 
round the tables if anyone objects to that timeframe just put up your 
hand and we will hear from you. 

 30 
DR COWIE:   Sir, would that 20 minutes include the lay submitters? 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   If they apply, but this is limited to, and you will be able to 

explain the difference, Dr Cowie, it is limited to legal submissions.  
They will have the other opportunity to address their submissions.   35 

 
MS BROUGHTON:   Can I ask a question? 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   Yes. 
 40 
MS BROUGHTON:   If the residents group wants to employ a lawyer, do they 

notify you? 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   Could you just identify yourself, please? 
 45 
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MS BROUGHTON:   Sorry, I am Helen Broughton, Riccarton/Wigram 
Community Board.  I am asking this really on behalf of the Residents 
Group who is thinking of employing a lawyer for this.  Do they notify 
the hearings Panel? 

 5 
CHAIRPERSON:   Yes, you would notify the secretariat, and the sooner you 

could do that, it would be helpful for us.   
 
MS BROUGHTON:   Thank you. 
 10 
CHAIRPERSON:   But of course. 
 
MS BROUGHTON:   Thank you. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   And after discussion with them, you would decide whether 15 

you want them to make closing legal submissions or not for you. 
 
 So then we will say in the procedural minute that, the Council, CERA 

and other multiple represented parties will have 40 minutes to speak to 
their written legal submissions and other parties, including lay 20 
submitters if they adopt such a course, will be 20 minutes.   

 
 I will just add, as I have been reminded, that that will include time for 

questions from the Panel.   
 25 
 We’ll just set aside because it’s listed later, the preliminary schedule, 

and come back to that.   
 
  [11.35 am] 
 30 
 Are there any other matters under 3 that any parties want to raise, I 

think again, if you just put up your hand and we will hear from you?  
Yes? 

 
MS MATHESON:   Thank you, sir, Ms Matheson for KiwiRail Holdings 35 

Limited. 
 
 I just wanted to raise with you KiwiRail’s approach to the hearing 

process generally and, in particular the requirement to attend pre-
hearing meetings, but it may be best to leave that until the end of this 40 
process, given it’s not directly related to this section. 

 
CHAIRPERSON:   No, raise it now, you have raised it, so let’s deal with it. 
 
MS MATHESON:   Thank you, sir. 45 
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 So KiwiRail has submitted on all of the chapters or proposals that form 
part of this stage of the plan review, however it considers that it’s in the 
interests of efficiency for it to focus its case further and only attend 
those hearings and pre-hearing meetings that is considered to be critical 
to its case.  This particular topic, the strategic directions, is not 5 
considered to fall within that category.   

 
 It is intending to call planning evidence in support of its submission on 

this topic, but it is happy for that evidence to be tabled and taken as 
read.   10 

 
CHAIRPERSON:   There may of course be an application to cross-examine on 

it. 
 
MS MATHESON:   Yes, exactly, and subject to any application for cross-15 

examination or any, I guess, intention for the panel to question that 
planning witness, KiwiRail is respectfully requesting to be excused 
from attending the hearing on the strategic directions.   

 
CHAIRPERSON:   There’s one other matter involving infrastructure that we 20 

want to discuss with submitters, and we will come back to, but subject 
to that process that we’re going to suggest and it may or may not be 
possible, if there was no cross-examination of your witness and no 
questions from the Panel, it would be quite proper to excuse you. 

 25 
MS MATHESON:   Thank you, your Honour. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   So we will come back to – there’s an issue under 

infrastructure. 
 30 
MS MATHESON:   Okay, and I just have one more issue to raise, sort of 

following on from that theme, is that KiwiRail and its advisors are 
located out of Christchurch and the current requirement to attend all 
pre-hearing meetings is sort of considered to be unnecessary unless it 
wishes to raise a particular procedural point. 35 

 
CHAIRPERSON:   Well, if you do not want to come, that is your business.   
 
MS MATHESON:   Okay, thank you, your Honour, it’s just - - - 
 40 
CHAIRPERSON:   The risk is on your head. 
 
MS MATHESON:   I understood it was a requirement to attend based on the 

draft procedures. 
 45 
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CHAIRPERSON:   Well, it would be sensible, but unfortunately we do not 
have facilities at the moment for people to join by video and I’m not 
prepared to go to telephone conferencing when we’ve got such a vast 
array in front of us because it would never work. 

 5 
MS MATHESON:   Yes, I understand that.   
 
CHAIRPERSON:   But I would have thought there is probably somebody with 

like interests to yours that you could have appear as your agent or 
something on it, but that is a matter for you, not us. 10 

 
MS MATHESON:   Okay, thank you, your Honour. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   Anything else under any other matters from the pre-trial? 
 15 
MR CLEARY:   Sir, I just wanted to raise, it’s a matter relating to the list of 

witnesses that the Council has indicated to call, and essentially they 
appear to be calling, should I call them high level witnesses, on each of 
the individual chapters, including residential natural hazards, and it 
may well be that a number of the submitters on those individual 20 
chapters would have liked the opportunity to cross-examine those 
witnesses, but they’re not aware that that evidence is being called, so I 
wonder if there’s going to be an opportunity for parties to seek leave to 
recall witnesses? 

 25 
 Once some of those witnesses give evidence this time around, if 

individual submitters, say on the natural hazards chapter, might want to 
recall one or more of those witnesses? 

 
CHAIRPERSON:   Well, we always have the power to recall witnesses. 30 
 
MR CLEARY:   Yes. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   If the need arises, can we leave this over to the expert 

witnesses section because we have some questions around a number of 35 
witnesses and such like as well. 

 
MR CLEARY:   Happy to, sir. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   Any other matters on this? Thank you. 40 
 
 The second procedural minute and the response really goes, Ms 

Semple, to the memorandum you filed. 
 
MS SEMPLE:   Yes, sir. 45 
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CHAIRPERSON:   And there has been some criticism, I think it fair to say, of 
the process.  You didn’t seem to have served it on anyone else? 

 
  [11.40 am] 
 5 
MS SEMPLE:   No, sir, and I apologise for that.  I was under the impression 

and it came as a result of the memorandum of the City Council that had 
been filed prior to our first and formal meeting, that the intent was that 
you serve it on the independent secretariat and that it was uploaded to 
the website, because certainly that - - -  10 

 
CHAIRPERSON:   Yes, but it was perfectly plain last time and we make it 

plain again, that at end of the day, service remains a responsibility of - - 
-  

 15 
MS SEMPLE:   Yes, sir, I appreciate that criticism and I apologise for that. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   The second issue out of that is the response that you file, 

Mr Winchester, seeking that you delay filing your evidence as a 
consequence of this. 20 

 
MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, sir.  Do you want me to speak to that? 
 
 Well it’s set out hopefully, reasonably clearly in the memorandum for 

the City, in that the closing date for submissions was the 8th of October 25 
and we’re dealing with parties who are by and large seasoned 
participants in these types of RMA processes.  There was no truncation 
of timeframes in terms of the ability to review the proposal and make a 
submission on it.  That was a standard RMA timeframe. 

 30 
CHAIRPERSON:   Well I think the real problem with it was, that the form 

failed to request parties to specifically identify the relief they sought, 
which - - -  

 
MR WINCHESTER:   Yes. 35 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   - - - in any consultation with this panel, would have been 

part of the form, but that’s the form that’s annexed to the order in 
Council and people were stuck with it, but - - -  

 40 
MR WINCHESTER:   Yes. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   - - - I think that’s a genesis of the problem. 
 
MR WINCHESTER:   Okay, well even bearing that in mind, sir, it’s 45 

reasonably central to the entire submission process, irrespective of the 
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“form” and it’s particular content that parties identify what changes 
they want to see, and so we’re now five weeks down the track from that 
closing date of submissions when the issue of what relief is going to be 
pursued has already been put on the table and it has been identified as 
being critical for the preparation of evidence and we’ve had a 5 
suggestion that the first we will see and indeed the panel will see of the 
proposed relief is when evidence is filed on either the 25th of 27th of 
November. 

 
 From the City Council’s point of view that places it in an invidious 10 

position based on the “current” timetable, which has the Council’s 
evidence to be filed and served on all parties by the 18th of November.  
Simply it’s experts won’t be in a position to analyse the relief sought 
and obviously based on what is going on in the background, and 
certainly no criticism made of parties getting together and trying to 15 
refine their relief, there’s going to be a significant block of major 
submitters that appears who file their combined relief very late in the 
piece. 

 
 So, that calls into the question the value of the Council’s evidence 20 

which would be filed, which would be relatively – well, it would be 
incomplete, sir. 

 
CHAIRPERSON:   We’d discussed this before this morning and what we have 

in mind – so I want you to comment before I go around the tables – is 25 
that, the specific relief sought needs to be provided by close of business 
on – well, in fact 3pm so it can be posted on the website and I’ll come 
back to that by next Wednesday the 19th, that the timetable regarding 
your evidence remains but that you can apply for leave to file 
supplementary evidence if necessary as a result of those specifications 30 
and we will give you an instant turnaround on that leave application. 

 
 So you want to address it again on that basis? 
 
MR WINCHESTER:   Well, sir, I think the preference would be if, the relief is 35 

to be specified by the 19th, it may be more efficient for the Council’s 
evidence to be submitted on the 21st, rather than – so you’d get it all in 
one hit.  Obviously timeframes would be particularly tight, but as 
you’ve heard from my friend Ms Semple this morning, a without 
prejudice draft has been circulated and has been copied to the council 40 
and so there is at least an awareness of what is happening, the detail 
that is not yet finalised.   

 
  [11.45 am] 
 45 
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 It is really just in terms of the ability to provide considered evidence on 
statement I think would be more efficient.  That would then leave 
submitters to have the same period, two working days in essence to 
respond to the council’s evidence and if necessary that 27th of 
November date would still apply for rebuttal. 5 

 
CHAIRPERSON:   Yes, your Honour here, it would seem to me and seems to 

the Panel a great deal of your evidence is not going to be influenced by 
this? 

 10 
MR WINCHESTER:   Well that does raise a separate but distinct issue sir, 

which is around whether the Panel is going to receive advice or reports 
from its own expert assistance in the nature of a section 42A report 
because at the moment there is no officer’s report per se, and based on 
the understanding of the hearing procedures that is not the function of 15 
the council either to essentially prepare documents or evidence in the 
nature of a section 42A report, but being the proponent of the proposal 
it does need to consider all of the relief and take a view on it. 

 
 I am, and the city, is rather in the Panel’s hands as to its expectations 20 

about the information it has before it and how that it is packaged.  I 
simply wanted to bring that to the Panel’s attention. 

 
CHAIRPERSON:   All right, well I think we had better hear from others on it. 
 25 
MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, and with your leave sir, I may once I have heard 

from other parties have something more to say about that. 
 
JUDGE HASSAN:   Mr Winchester is it your perception that it is all of your 

evidence which is the issue with this or is it certain evidence?  For 30 
instance is it a concern that some witnesses need time for modelling or 
something like that, what is the issue? 

 
MR WINCHESTER:   It is really looking at the specific relief and carrying out 

a sufficient analysis in terms of section 32, is it the most appropriate 35 
and knowing the detail of that is reasonably important. 

 
JUDGE HASSAN:   So it is not a question of, for instance needing time to run 

models, rerun models, it is a question of the evaluative time needed by 
the witnesses on your list? 40 

 
MR WINCHESTER:   That is right, sir yes. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   Mr van der Wal? 
 45 
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MR VAN DER WAL:   Sir, my client’s submission and relief were rather 
narrow and fairly focused and I am happy to abide by the decision of the 
panel in this matter. 

 
CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you, Regional Council? 5 
 
MR RACHIN:   We will abide by the decision of the panel.  We can work with 

either of the two scenarios. 
 
MR LE MARQUAND:   David Le Marquand, on behalf of the oil companies, 10 

just hoping that we are looking for a key I guess from the council to lead 
in terms of the red line version of the words.  We have not been party to 
the other provisions but I understand the processes if we can narrow 
down the issues before we get to there and the council can pick up on 
those things as soon as they can by any other group information putting 15 
that in front of them, it would be much helpful for the other parties to be 
able to use that as a key to write their evidence and target and being more 
targeted for the Panel’s sake. 

 
 In terms of the process I am not clear whether there is rebuttal allowed 20 

for other parties or is it only the Christchurch City Council that is 
allowed rebuttal because it may be that once other parties present their 
evidence, there is an opportunity to say well that relief actually does the 
same job for the submissions that we are promoting. 

 25 
CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Steven, and perhaps could you just elucidate for us 

again the concern you have with this document that has been circulated 
to some but not all I think and why it is not clear from that the relief 
that at least those parties are seeking? 

 30 
  [11.50 am] 
 
MS STEVEN:   Yes, I could.  Well firstly it’s a clean document so we’re going 

to have to make the comparison with the notified proposal because 
changes are not tracked just to see what changes have been made.  And 35 
from my own part I know what to look for and so it’s not too difficult 
an exercise, but I do note for example that there are some – there is a 
comment in the margin that does identify the source of some of the 
changes, but it does not actually illustrate what changes those are and 
so for example there are some changes that originate from the input of 40 
the airport. 

 
 But there are other changes that were sought in their submission that 

are not effected in that document and I don’t know whether it’s because 
they have abandoned that part of their relief or whether it only reflects 45 
a partial agreement.  So in other words it’s not possible to know what 
part of their submission point is reflected in the document that’s been 
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produced and what issues remain outstanding or which may be 
withdrawn. 

 
CHAIRPERSON:   Right. 
 5 
MS STEVEN:   And I suppose the other dimension to it as well is some of the 

specific wording changes and bearing in mind that this issue about the 
lack of specification of relief, I don’t know how widespread the issue is 
but some parties have specified relief and there may only be a handful 
of submitters that have not done that, which makes it difficult to 10 
identify scope.  But where submissions have specified relief, one 
assumes that scope is still an issue, because people in the further 
submission stage will have looked at the original submission and 
formed a view about whether or not they are going to become involved 
in that second round based on what they anticipate the changes – that 15 
were sought to be made by that original submission. 

 
 And so I think it is necessary just to be able to do that cross check and 

make sure that the changes that are effected in this document do 
properly fall out of that original submission in terms of their scope. 20 

 
CHAIRPERSON:   KiwiRail, anything?  Mr Williams? 
 
MR WILLIAMS:   I will leave my second comment on the document which 

has got reference to the airport.  Just regarding timeframes more 25 
generally, I’m certainly concerned that things are getting incredibly 
tight with the Council’s proposed revised timetable.  I think things are 
tight enough already, sir. 

 
CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Semple? 30 
 
MS SEMPLE:   Thank you, sir.  I want to be clear that the Property Council 

and other parties did specify relief.  They indicated that they wanted to 
see amendment to the strategic directions chapter to provide a more 
development focus in keeping they say with the statement of 35 
expectations, the LURP and other documents. 

 
 What the Panel has subsequently required and which the Property 

Council is very comfortable in providing is a very specific track change 
version of the strategic directions chapter which shows exactly what 40 
wording changes they want to see.  Now in an attempt to ensure that 
the hearings panel didn’t end up with potentially 20 different track 
change versions the Property Council undertook to provide a draft track 
change which sought to take into account as many parties as seemed to 
have similar interests. 45 
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 And so the reason it hasn’t been circulated to all parties is that all 
parties don’t have similar interests in this chapter.  As Your Honour 
identified it wasn’t possible for the hearings panel to schedule 
mediation.  Similarly the timeframe that is available makes it very 
difficult to even embark on informal mediation and discussion.  5 

 
 So what we have endeavoured to do is to start with a base document 

which meets the Property Council’s concerns.  That has been circulated 
increasingly widely to other parties who have been identified as having 
similar concerns and who also have not provided a track change 10 
version. 

 
CHAIRPERSON:   The difficult with that is you cannot select who you serve.  

Once you decide to file a memorandum and something accompanying.  
Look, we appreciate what you’re trying to do here, but other people had 15 
to be put on notice of these things. 

 
MS SEMPLE:   Sir, the memorandum simply asked for more time to be able to 

provide our track change relief.  You will appreciate that the original 
direction required that to be lodged last Monday. 20 

 
CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Semple, if things are filed they need to be served full 

stop. 
 
MS SEMPLE:   Yes sir, I appreciate that.   25 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   There’s no argument about that.  All right? 
 
  [11.55 am] 
 30 
MS SEMPLE:   Sir, I’m making the distinction that what has been circulated 

was not filed, it was not part of the memorandum. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   No, and I understand that, I’m talking about the 

memorandum now. 35 
 
MS SEMPLE:   Yes, sir, and I appreciate that and I have apologised for that 

failure. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:  Now what about the criticism is, that it’s not clear the 40 

changes in your document number one and number two, it seems to 
suggest or doesn’t exactly mirror, the original submission, in other 
words, Ms Steven’s made the comment that some things appear in the 
document, means that some – if it’s a final version of what’s being 
sought, that some of the airport submissions dropped out for example. 45 
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MS SEMPLE:  But, sir, the document that has been circulated there is a redline 
version available, it was circulated and clean simply because there were 
so many changes, so I do have and it was clearly indicated to those 
parties it was provided to that there was a redline version available and 
that’s been provided. 5 

 
CHAIRPERSON:  Okay, well I appreciate that but I think just for future 

reference in any of this stuff, if this is going to happen it’s got to be in a 
track change version. 

 10 
MS SEMPLE:   Yes, sir, and as I say that’s certainly available. The Property 

Council is simply in the position - - -  
 
CHAIRPERSON:   No, but that’s the one that needs to be circulated. 
 15 
MS SEMPLE:  Yes, sir, I’m happy to do so, although I would say that the 

Property Council is in the position where it is required to file relief by 
whatever date you specify and if that’s Wednesday the 19th it will do 
so. Other parties who have not specified track change relief will need to 
do the same thing, they can choose whether they accept the track 20 
change version and rely on it, that the Property Council is filing or 
choose not to. 

 
 We’re not suggesting that this some great agreed version. I can’t speak 

- - -  25 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   No, no, no, no that’s understood, it’s understood - - -  
 
MS SEMPLE:   - - - on behalf of - - -  
 30 
CHAIRPERSON:   - - - that’s understood. 
 
MS SEMPLE:   - - - the airport to say whether they are comfortable with the 

version that has been provided or not, so I want to make that very clear. 
 35 
CHAIRPERSON:   Well I think that will come out when we order the specific 

relief anyway that - - -  
 
MS SEMPLE:   Yes. 
 40 
CHAIRPERSON:   - - - if there is any changes from submission. 
 
MS SEMPLE:   Yes, and - - -  
 
JUDGE HASSAN:   Go ahead. 45 
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MS SEMPLE:   - - - sorry? 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   This guy could do it. 
 
JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes. Ms Semple, just in terms of a couple of things there, 5 

to what extent do you think you can advance, bearing in mind the 
pressures you’re under, the time in terms of circulation of the 
document, appreciating that you’re trying to do – it appears you’re 
trying to do something by way of coordination with other parties who 
may be looking at it on it without prejudice basis, but if you were to 10 
think about the issues that Mr Winchester’s raised and Ms Steven has 
raised, are you in position to push that timetable hard? 

 
MS SEMPLE:  Sir, we will meet whatever timetable we’re given, to be entirely 

frank we will use whatever days we’ve got to get to place as many 15 
parties in a position where they might agree or decide to rely on the 
same track change version. 

 
JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, just coming to that second point - - -  
 20 
MS SEMPLE:   Yes. 
 
JUDGE HASSAN:   - - - wouldn’t you find it of assistance if it was possible, at 

a certain point in the programme, in advance of that date when it 
circulated, to allow for parties who are in discussion, to have a 25 
facilitated discussion – mediation? 

 
MS SEMPLE:   Yes, sir, I would, I think – it’s certainly our aim at the moment 

has been to, has been to circulate it to seek comment in very tight 
timeframes. Our intention was to endeavour to arrange a meeting early 30 
next week to see whether we could take it any further. 

 
CHAIRPERSON:   And you’d be in a position and the parties that you’ve been 

in touch with, are in a position to make themselves available for such a 
facilitated - - -  35 

 
MS SEMPLE:   Yes, sir. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   Because that’s one of the things I indicated - - -  
 40 
MS SEMPLE:   Yes. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:  - - - we wanted to come back to and we had a particular 

“grouping” of submitters in mind around infrastructure, but we were 
going to query whether we could assist by facilitating the provision of a 45 
mediator in other natural groupings and this does seem to be one. 
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MS SEMPLE:   Yes, sir, I think that would be of tremendous benefit. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   All right.  
 5 
MS SEMPLE:   Thank you. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Radich? 
 
MR RADICH:  Yes, thank you, sir, the 19th is a date that certainly the Crown 10 

can work to and will work to, but just to explain its position a little bit 
and just briefly, in the Crown’s submission there are two approaches, 
one of them there are a range of track changes that are suggested to 
particular provisions as a result of particular issues and they are there 
and they were given at the outset. 15 

 
 The other aspect from the Crown’s point of view is that, it makes a 

very broad submission about the nature of this proposal. It talks about – 
with the greatest of respect to the Council, the lack and the plan of 
specific strategic direction and specificity and so, the submission it was 20 
making there wasn’t a track change document because it was really 
saying to the Panel, that this needs a rethink and here are the areas and 
we think it should be much shorter and it should be far more focused so 
that the Panel could, perhaps during the hearing’s, hold the pen and 
take some initiative. 25 

 
  [12.00 pm] 
 
 However, taking on board the comments that my learned friends have 

made and have been making, the Crown is looking to, well is in the 30 
process of and is advanced in the process of, putting that in writing in a 
track change version so that it can be helpful, and it will have that by 
the 19th, but in saying that, it doesn’t resile from its broad submission 
that really, just a rethink of the structure of this proposal is needed. 

 35 
CHAIRPERSON:   Understood.  Ms Dewar, I’m sorry. 
 
MS DEWAR:   From my client’s perspective, they are happy to meet the 19th 

timetable that has been suggested.  It is in discussion with the Property 
Council and at least two of my clients are very close to agreeing to the 40 
current version, so at least that knocks out two separate versions out of 
three. 

 
 In my submission, the Council’s timetable is too tight and I think that it 

raises the position of the Council in the context of this process and it is, 45 
in many respects, just like any other submitter, in participating in this, 
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it is not the decision maker as it would ordinarily be in a hearings 
process on a district plan review.  That is your job and it should not 
have any more advantages, if you like, during that process. 

 
CHAIRPERSON:   Anything from over here?  Thank you. 5 
 
MS BROUGHTON:   Thank you.  Just in response to Semple, if there are 

going to be tracked changes from the Property Council which are 
agreed with a number of parties, how do people – our views are largely 
around the residential chapter.  What impact would we have or how 10 
could we intervene if we find a track change from Ms Semple and other 
submitters would affect the residential chapter? 

 
CHAIRPERSON:   Well at this stage, I have already indicated that this track 

change document needs to be made available to everybody.  We will 15 
come back to what steps we have made to make it available on the 
website.  If it did impact on the residential then submissions could be 
made on it, but we are dealing with strategic directions, not the specific 
chapters at the moment. 

 20 
MS BROUGHTON:   Yes, but it just could be though that a strategic direction 

is modified which would have an impact on concerns from a residential 
- - - 

 
CHAIRPERSON:   Well, if strategic direction is modified, it could well impact 25 

on every other chapter that we are dealing with, number one, and 
number two, if we then get to those chapters and find that on a 
reconsideration the modification needs modification, then we will have 
to consider that.  That is just the very nature of the way this thing has 
been structured. 30 

 
MS BROUGHTON:   Thank you, and so the understanding is that any 

submitter would circulate around all submitters? 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   Not all submitters. 35 
 
MS BROUGHTON:   No. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   All submitters on this chapter. 
 40 
MS BROUGHTON:   On this chapter. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  Perhaps you misunderstood a little bit.  The tracked 

change version only represents the views of those who are parties to it, 
so it is not binding anyone else.   45 
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 And the other comment that has to be made and this is one that 
Ms Stevens has made, is that anything that happens must be in the 
scope of your submission or further submission, so that is a limitation, 
if you like.  

 5 
 Mr Winchester, do you want to respond? 
 
  [12.05 pm] 
 
MR WINCHESTER:   There are a few matters to respond to, sir.  Firstly I 10 

think, I am not sure who raised it, but it is a question about the Council 
essentially setting out its position in its evidence and I think it goes 
without saying that the Council’s evidence would include a track 
change version in terms of what it was prepared to advance or in terms 
of accepting or rejecting relief.  So that will be done. 15 

 
 Secondly, in terms of the timeframes we talked about and it does seem 

to be a little bit of a moving feast, if for example, the specific relief 
could be brought forward, say, to the 17th or 18th, then as a 
consequence, the Council’s evidence could move with that, and the 20 
Council has got no interest in gaining a special advantage and I do take 
issue with the point raised by my friend, Ms Dewar about that, about 
the Council being like any other submitter, that is quite wrong, sir.   

 
 The Council is the proponent of the proposal, it is interested in the 25 

entire proposal, not just discreet parts of it and it has an obligation and 
a responsibility as the proponent of the proposal to deal with all of it.  
And I think your Honour said at the previous meeting that we had, that 
the context was, if you wanted to put it in a civil context, submitters are 
plaintiffs, the Council is the defendant.  It is not - - - 30 

 
CHAIRPERSON:   I think I put it the other way round, you are the plaintiff 

and they are the defendants.   
 
MR WINCHESTER:   Whichever way, sir, there is a distinction - - - 35 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   We won’t go into what weight there might have to be 

applied. 
 
MR WINCHESTER:   No sir, but the point is the Council’s task is as a 40 

consequence, bigger than any other parties, and the timetable I have 
suggested is not seeking a special advantage, it is seeking the same 
timeframes as anyone else, and I think that is perfectly reasonable 
given the point I made earlier, that we are now five weeks on and still 
have not seen the specific relief of a number of key submitters. 45 
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 So my suggestion, sir, would be that the Panel makes a direction in 
terms of a specific relief which brings it forward a day, maybe two 
days, from the 19th, and that the Council’s evidence moves with that 
and that the other dates that were previously directed which are the 
25th and 27th, need not change. 5 

 
CHAIRPERSON:   Just one thing, Mr Winchester, you did not comment on the 

suggestion that if we could put in place a facilitated mediation on this, 
would the Council participate? 

 10 
MR WINCHESTER:   Absolutely, sir, it should do so.  And there is one other 

point I omitted to mention and it builds on the scope point raised by my 
learned friend Ms Steven, which is that not just as the Council need to 
consider the merits of different positions which are being advanced, but 
also on the daily analysis of scope, so two working days to do that is, it 15 
is not an insubstantial exercise, sir.  

 
CHAIRPERSON:   All right, thank you, we are not minded to change the date 

for the filing of the evidence by the Council.  We will direct that 
specific relief sought must be filed by 3 pm on the 19 November.  We 20 
will grant leave now to the Council to file supplementary evidence.  It 
seems to us it probably only goes to the track document you are going 
to do, not much more than that but it maybe more than that, but we will 
grant you that leave now, what time would you suggest for that, two 
days? 25 

 
MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, sir, yes, thank you. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   Within two days, so the 21st, thank you. 
 30 
 The next issue is shared witnesses.  I think this arises specifically from 

an economist that the City is calling, but the Airport also wishes to call.  
I am a little surprised that there is no property (ph 4.56) in the witness, 
Mr Winchester? 

 35 
  [12.10 pm] 
 
MR WINCHESTER:   No, there is not, sir, and there was never any reluctance 

from the council in terms of that witness giving evidence, the 
reluctance based on my understanding of things was that of the witness.  40 
That now seems to have been resolved, I have had a discussion with Ms 
Appleyard for the Airport and really the reluctance was around the 
perception of objectivity of that witness who would giving an overview 
economic brief in terms of the strategic directions chapter for the city. 

 45 
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 The perception, and potentially being a target for criticism, by other 
submitters by including a significant section on the airport’s specific 
matters and what sort of issues that might raise, but on the basis that the 
Panel is content with hearing or - - -  

 5 
CHAIRPERSON:   Well people can make that submission, you are calling the 

witness so you have no property in it, if the airport wants to call the 
witness and face that criticism so be it.  It is more a conflict of interest 
point which is for the witness to be conscious of because no doubt he 
will be stating he complies with the code for expert witnesses. 10 

 
MR WINCHESTER:   Sir, that is correct. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   You do not need anything from us. 
 15 
MR WINCHESTER:   Fine, thank you, sir. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Williams? 
 
MR WILLIAMS:   I do not think I really need to add anything to that to be fair. 20 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   Right, thank you.  Specification of relief we have dealt 

with, now expert witnesses for each party, we have a table that has 
been prepared by the secretariat which indicates a number of parties’ 
intention to call evidence.  We have a list of witnesses from both the 25 
city and CERA, some of the other submitters have indicated the 
witnesses they are going to call others have not.   

 
 What we are going to require is that during the luncheon adjournment 

submitters that have not indicated whether or not they are going to call 30 
a witness need to advise the secretariat and advise who the witnesses 
will be and those submitters who have indicated they will be calling 
evidence, but have not nominated the witness will also over the 
luncheon adjournment need to nominate that witness to the secretariat 
so we can have a full schedule. 35 

 
 There was a comment you would have heard Mr Winchester about 

some of your witnesses at a high level and some of them, it just 
occurred to us that perhaps is a little surprising seeing them in the 
Strategic Direction, the initial indication we have them as Thomas in an 40 
email to the secretariat on the 3rd of November was four witnesses, 
sorry Ms Scott.  We had four witnesses and now we are at 12. 

 
MR WINCHESTER:   I am advised that that was for a different hearing, the 

four witnesses, but in terms of them being high level the council has 45 
assembled a team and these people have responsibility for various 
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aspects of the replacement plan and I think it is reasonable to assume 
that you will see those same witnesses when those specific chapters 
come up. 

 
CHAIRPERSON:   What I think we are going to have to are we not to answer 5 

the comment that was made from a couple of sources that if they are 
going to give evidence around residential for example and strategic 
direction and then they did not turn up on the strategic direction, so you 
can see the potential problem that could arise? 

 10 
MR WINCHESTER:   Well that is right, sir, and obviously the Panel has the 

ability to make sure that those witnesses appear or are subpoenaed if 
necessary.  

 
CHAIRPERSON:   I think it is more as long as you are conscious of it and deal 15 

with the issue, Mr Winchester. 
 
MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, absolutely, no problem, sir, thank you. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.  Does anybody else have anything around 20 

expert witnesses, we have made a direction that you supply names or 
indicate at the luncheon adjournment is there anything anybody else 
had anything around this?   All right, thank you.   

 
 I suppose we should have, before we went on, under the discussion we 25 

had earlier we will facilitate mediation in that area at short a notice as 
possible we may have some Commissioners available, again can I ask 
the parties that are involved in that if they would see the secretariat 
over the luncheon adjournment and give some indications of 
availability and it is going to have to be very short notice obviously and 30 
we will facilitate that process. 

 
  [12.15 pm] 
 
 We had already come to that conclusion of suggesting it to those parties 35 

that are involved with infrastructure so it is probably best to deal with 
that now, I did have it listed for later, but I will hand over to 
Judge Hassan because he has made a list of parties that he believes will 
be involved in infrastructure issues and we may be able to facilitate 
something there as well. 40 

 
JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you, Mr Chairman.  The issue with the 

infrastructure set, as I am sure those that are involved with 
infrastructure will see for themselves, is to look across at the different 
relief specified in the different submissions and there is elements that 45 
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appear to be worth further discussion to see if there can be greater 
consensus or not.   

 
 Ms Matheson for KiwiRail, this is the one thing we reserve to sort of 

your attention.  The submitters that I have got on the list, obviously the 5 
Council and CERA, the others I have noted, a number of whom are not 
here, Spark and Chorus, Rockgas.  So Spark is 363, 364 Chorus, 397 
Rockgas, 596 Radio New Zealand, 723 Mobil, Z and BP - 
Mr le Marquand, 774 Liquigas, 804 Airways Corporation, 832 
Transpower, 863 Christchurch International Airport, 897 KiwiRail and 10 
915 Lyttelton Port Company.   

 
 In terms of infrastructure is there anyone in the room who feels as 

though they should be in that set that I have mentioned?  Mr Cleary? 
 15 
MR CLEARY:   Eros Clearwater have made a submission that relates to 

strategic protection of infrastructure. 
 
JUDGE HASSAN:   Sorry, could you repeat the name? 
 20 
MR CLEARY:   Sorry, Eros Clearwater Limited has made a submission 

relating to, I guess, generally strategic protection of infrastructure. 
 
SECRETARIAT:  730. 
 25 
JUDGE HASSAN:   So just in terms of, Mr Chairman, just back to you in 

terms of a direction that could be made, it is along similar lines to those 
that we mentioned earlier for the lunch adjournment. 

 
CHAIRPERSON:   Just to double check, is there anybody else that has made a 30 

submission in relation to infrastructure in strategic direction? 
 
MR RACHLIN:   So for the Canterbury Regional Council our submission 

supports the strategic directions chapter.  Although we are not an 
infrastructure provider we have an interest in how the matter is 35 
implemented in terms of our regional policy statement, chapter 6, 
particularly around strategic infrastructure and issues of reverse 
sensitivity et cetera.  I think we would probably be quite interested in 
that mediation. 

 40 
CHAIRPERSON:   Right. 
 
MS SMITH:   Paula Smith from Lyttelton-Mt Herbert Community Board, we 

made a submission about the thing mentioned before about changing 
the wording of the objective from “managing” to – I think that is the 45 
natural hazards, isn’t it? 
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes. 
 
MS SMITH:   Yes, okay. 
 5 
CHAIRPERSON:   Yes, Ms Steven? 
 
MS STEVEN:   Yes, some of my clients, obviously IFL have made 

submissions in relation to that chapter as well and a couple of other 
landowners, Errol Smith and A Kyle. (ph 3.55) 10 

 
CHAIRPERSON:   And you would participate? 
 
MS STEVEN:   Yes, well, in a sense.  It depends on whether the objective is to 

get better consensus, which is what I understand Judge Hassan said 15 
about the relief sought by each of those.  I can’t imagine that there is 
going to be any consensus involving IFL and so I am not insisting that I 
take part in that, I am just happy to pick it to bits once that consensus 
has been reached. 

 20 
CHAIRPERSON:   But that is not your only client? 
 
MS STEVEN:   No, that is right. 
 
MR WILLIAMS:   Sorry, I expect the position is also the same with Eros or 25 

Mr Cleary might want to clarify as well. 
 
JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, it is really which team do you want to be in, 

Mr Cleary? 
 30 
MR CLEARY:   No, we would be happy to participate.  I don’t – I mean sort of 

Eros’ position is different than IFL, for example. It relates to the 
continuation of the site specific or a zone specific exemption for 
Clearwater so I don’t think there will be any common ground between 
Eros and the airport and Mr Williams is shaking his head quite 35 
vigorously. 

 
  [12.20 pm] 
 
MS STEVEN:   He can come to my camp. 40 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   Anyway, we will direct that the parties that we have 

indicated plus the other ones that came out should meet again with the 
Secretariat over the luncheon adjournment and we will facilitate.  At 
least if nothing else it will clarify a few things.  Thank you for that. 45 
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 We have talked about closing submissions, I think we need to jump 
ahead to preliminary schedule and I just want to take a minute to 
discuss this with the other Panel members before I come back to you 
because our discussions, as they have unfolded, have changed things a 
just a little bit. 5 

 
 We were presented this morning with a suggested hearing schedule 

from the Secretariat.  What I am going to do is have that circulated to 
you.  The one thing that it includes is a different view of when the legal 
submissions and such like would be made, and we have already dealt 10 
with that.   

 
 I will take an early luncheon adjournment, because there are quite a 

few matters for the Secretariat to deal with you over lunch, we will 
need to run off some copies of that document for everybody, but I 15 
would like to then come back and discuss that actual hearing schedule 
after the luncheon adjournment. 

 
 But it really looks at starting on 2 December and completing evidence 

by, say, 15 December.  The filing of written legal submissions 20 
contemporaneously by 19 December, but we could probably extend 
that to the next week of, say, the 22nd.  And then starting back and 
hearing the closing submissions on the week starting I think it is 
Monday, 5 January, which is our only chance of getting a decision by 
the statutory date.  It is not the best news for anyone in the world but I 25 
am afraid that is where we are at.   

 
 So we will have that document circulated to everybody.  Just ignore in 

it the references to closing legal submissions and such like because we 
have already discussed and dealt with that and we will come back and 30 
deal with that at 2 o’clock.  Thank you. 

 
ADJOURNED [12.23 pm] 
 
RESUMED [1.59 pm] 35 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   All right, thank you everybody and we have had reports of 

the progress over the lunchtime for which the Panel is extremely 
grateful to everybody and the co-operation around that. 

 40 
 I think if we come back now to the preliminary schedule and the 

document that was circulated, and then we will go to the timing of 
closing submissions, depending where we get with the various views 
on that preliminary schedule. 

 45 
 So starting with the Council, Mr Winchester. 
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  [2.00 pm] 
 
MR WINCHESTER:   No issues, sir. 
 5 
CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you. 
 
MR WINCHESTER:   Thank you. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   Mr van der Wal? 10 
 
MR VAN DER WAL:   No issues, sir. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   Regional Council? 
 15 
MR RACHLIN:   We don’t seem to appear on the list. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   We will make sure you are added. 
 
MR RACHLIN:   (INDISTINCT 0.14) 20 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Le Marquand? 
 
MR LE MARQUAND:   I do not think we are actually on the list there. 
 25 
CHAIRPERSON:   It was done in haste so we will have it repaired.  

Ms Stevens? 
 
MS STEVENS:   Well, I am just assuming that the odds and sods will go in 

somewhere after the Airport and before the lay submitters. 30 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   Never describe yourself as an odds and sods. 
 
MS STEVENS:   We are not – not a major party. 
 35 
CHAIRPERSON:   No, no, but when we have got to refine this I am just really 

wanting to get consensus from both the represented parties and the lay 
parties, so that for the general thing will work, we will have to refine it 
and make sure everyone is there and such like, and then we can prepare 
a proper schedule from it and timeline the closing submissions, so 40 
thank you. 

 
MR CLEARY:   No issues, sir. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you, KiwiRail? 45 
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MS MATHESON:   No issues. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Williams. 
 
MR WILLIAMS:   No issue, or a couple of minor points that can be dealt with 5 

in due course, sir. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Semple? 
 
MS SEMPLE:   Comfortable, thank you, sir. 10 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you, Mr Radich.  
 
MR RADICH:   No, issue, sir, the only thing is, and again, this can be picked 

up in due course, there are two witnesses for CERA who would not be 15 
available on the allocated hearing days, just two of them, but they could 
be swapped with someone else, so when the details are worked through 
- - - 

 
CHAIRPERSON:   What we have got there, if parties need to mix and match 20 

their witnesses - - -  
 
MR RADICH:   Yes. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   - - - you can just arrange that with the secretariat. 25 
 
MR RADICH:   Yes, sir. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   It is seldom a problem if they are out of chronological 

order or something like that, but as long as they are available in the 30 
time space that we have got, that is the main thing. 

 
MR RADICH:   They are indeed, sir, we will make it work, thank you. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.  Anybody over here got any issues around that.   35 
 
 Well thank you, that is reassuring, we were concerned about that 

because of the timeframe so we are grateful for the co-operation around 
that.  We will refine that document, we will make sure that it will be – I 
think the best thing is to circulate it in draft form to make sure we have 40 
captured everybody in the list. 

 
MR THOMAS:   Can I just advise the Panel that they did not really set them 

out over the lunch break for you in terms of how many additional 
experts that were not considered. 45 
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CHAIRPERSON:   So people indicated to you, yes. 
 
MR THOMAS:   So we probably do have, I think, just looking at the list, six or 

seven additional planning experts, one economics, that are not in that 
list so we will have to manage that list, the schedule, to accommodate 5 
those additional witnesses as well. 

 
CHAIRPERSON:   I think we had the 15th up our sleeve anyway, didn’t we? 
 
MR THOMAS:   Yes, and we will have lay submitters appearing as well in that 10 

time.  But we can – In terms of the general structure, it is manageable. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   All right, well I think the best course if everyone agrees, 

and put your hand up if you don’t, that we will accommodate the 
additional witnesses, we will refine the list, we will make sure 15 
everybody is in it, we will circulate it to get your final sign off, but the 
starting date will be in a Notice of Hearing which will be notified – it 
should come out, it will come out Monday, but we will get that done. 

 
 What we then had in mind was that the written submissions, closing 20 

legal submissions, should be filed all contemporaneously, can we say 
by Monday, 22 December? 

 
 Again, I will just ask if anyone has got a problem, just put their hand up 

and let me know.   25 
 
 Silence is acquiescence, thank you very much, so that will be directed – 

the hearing will start on 2 December, that the schedule will be amended 
to conclude by 15 December and that the parties and additional named 
witnesses will be included in the schedule, that will be circulated 30 
initially in draft form and then confirmed, and that all parties closing 
legal submissions, written submissions, are to be filed by Monday, 
22 December and that the Panel will reconvene to hear parties speaking 
to those submissions and any supplementary matters arising and also 
for Panel questions of submissions, on Monday 5 January. 35 

 
  [2.05 pm] 
 
 The hearing issues, clarifications, and narrowing of issues, I think we 

have made considerable progress this morning with the mediations that 40 
will take place, hopefully next week, and other indications that parties 
will talk about cross-examination and combining and such like, but is 
there anything else anybody has around other hearing issues. 

 
 Mr Winchester? 45 
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MR WINCHESTER:   Sir, just on clarification and narrowing of issues, I 
omitted to mention earlier that there has been discussions taking place 
between the City and CERA about the detail of changes to the chapter, 
and that it is anticipated that while it may not be capable of being fully 
agreed, and this is obviously without prejudice discussions, the 5 
discussions with CERA are likely to result in modifications to the 
chapter which will be wrapped up as part of that revision marked 
chapter that is circulated with the Council’s evidence. 

 
CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.  And you confirm that, Mr Radich? 10 
 
MR RADICH:   Yes, sir, thank you. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   I am grateful.  Is there anything else you were wanting to 

raise under hearing issues? 15 
 
MR WINCHESTER:   No, thank you, sir.  Sorry, just in terms, while I think of 

it, order of closing submissions.  Am I right in assuming that the 
Council would go last? 

 20 
CHAIRPERSON:   Yes. 
 
MR WINCHESTER:   Thank you. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   CERA second last I would have thought, and then – what 25 

we are discussing is that because we have ordered contemporaneous 
filing of the closing submissions, whether the Council should have a 
right of reply, and whether that should be in written form.  It probably 
would be helpful to other parties but my view, my own view, and I am 
not sure we are all in agreement on this, is they are the very issues to be 30 
addressed in your oral opportunity. 

 
MR WINCHESTER:   And I would be perfectly happy with that.  I am not 

convinced that it will be necessary to file further submissions in reply. 
 35 
CHAIRPERSON:   It starts to get circular after a while. 
 
MR WINCHESTER:   And I think by that stage one would hope that the issues 

and the points of difference become pretty apparent and can be 
addressed orally. 40 

 
CHAIRPERSON:   All right, is everybody else – I should have raised that 

earlier I guess – everybody happy with that approach? 
 
MR RADICH:   Yes, thank you. 45 
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CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.  Mr Winchester, was there anything else under 
the hearing issues.  I am going to come to the pre-circulation of 
evidence and how we can deal with that, but other than that, is there 
anything else you wish to raise? 

 5 
MR WINCHESTER:   Thank you, no. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.  Mr van der Wal? 
 
MR VAN DER WAL:   No, sir. 10 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   Oil companies – sorry, Regional Council, I keep 

overlooking you, my apologies. 
 
MR RACHLIN:   Nothing for us. 15 
 
MR LE MARQUAND:   Not at the moment, apart from us, we have a very 

easy hearing schedule. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   You have at the moment.  Ms Stevens.  No.  Sorry, 20 

Ms Stevens. 
 
MS STEVENS:   Sir, I just had one question in relation to Mr Winchester’s 

comments about an amended, potentially further amended track change 
version of the chapter that might be agreed between CERA and the 25 
City.  I take it though, that there will be a track change version of the 
CERA chapter lodged at the same time as the others on the 19th. 

 
CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Radich indicated that this morning. 
 30 
MS STEVENS:   Thank you, I just wanted to check that. 
 
MR RADICH:   Her workstream is there and they may well merge. 
 
MS STEVENS:   Right, thank you. 35 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   It is possibly a little much to hope for but still. 
 
MR RADICH:   Yes. 
 40 
  [2.10 pm] 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   Anything from our lay submitters?  Thank you.  Could we 

now come to the pre-circulation of evidence and let me open this by 
saying that service and service of evidence remains the responsibility of 45 
the parties, but there was an amendment to the procedure posted on the 
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website two days ago? Yesterday, which I suggest you go to but 
effectively if you file your evidence by 3.00 pm or any other 
documentation you want for that matter I guess is it?  Yes, so 
submissions and such like.  They will go on the website that day.  They 
have to be in a certain form which is an annexure to the document that 5 
was posted yesterday.   

 
 And I stress that it will still be your responsibility to establish service if 

there’s an argument, but the secretariat will offer that service which is 
the same system that the EPA operates.  So it has to be in by 3.00.  It 10 
has to be in the right format but it will then, if that is done, go on the 
website that day. 

 
 We are looking at getting to a stage where we can notify updatings by 

mass emails.  At the moment we’ve got to do it in the sense of doing a 15 
group email just to this group here for strategic directions, but we’ll 
investigate whether or not the IT setup can automatically generate and 
trigger a warning notice to you effectively.  So has anyone got any 
comments or questions around that? Thank you. The Judge just 
volunteered to hand me his phone. 20 

 
 We’ve talked already and we probably can’t take it any further, but 

we’ve got the infrastructure grouping we’ve looked at. The grouping 
that you’ve put together, if I can say that Ms Semple. Are there any 
other natural groupings that people can identify that come together?  25 
We’re really just not making any direction here.  We’re proffering 
support for such activity.  So we’ll leave it with you. 

 
 I think we need to go and update the three smaller matters we’re going 

to come to next year, Mr Winchester.  But before we do that there was 30 
an indication from two of the submitters over here that they wish to say 
something about the process so we’ll just get the microphone and that’s 
your opportunity. 

 
MR ENGLISH:  Thank you for this opportunity.  Richard English from the 35 

Ilam Upper Riccarton Residents Association.  This process is supposed 
to be about the general public, the citizens of Christchurch.  But 
wittingly or otherwise this process has effectively disenfranchised the 
general members of the public.  Particularly the time scales that have 
been imposed on you the Panel and us the submitters. 40 

 
 And as you have heard this morning from a lot of the people here who 

represent very well resourced organisations the timetable is really very 
very difficult and I was saying to someone at lunchtime, if you’ll 
excuse the expression, it’s bonkers. There’s going to be a huge 45 
potential for major mistakes to be made, but the trouble is as I say it 
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just disenfranchises the public.  I would really like you to go back to 
the Minister and ask him on everybody’s behalf that we get the process 
right and that you be given proper time to do the job.   

 
 Now I recognise that you are under order in council.  That is a means to 5 

an end.  Not the end itself.  Thank you. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:  Well I note your concerns but you also noted there is an 

order in council which is the effective statute.  We’re bound by it.  
There is always the ability I suppose if we get into a bind that we can 10 
try to get an extension.  But we like you are subject to the order in 
counsel and we’ve got to try and do our best. 

 
MR ENGLISH:   Yes, I recognise that, but I just re-emphasise that the timeline 

you’ve been given is a means to an end and not the end itself.  I believe 15 
that that timeline can be changed and if it isn’t changed there are going 
to be major issues.  It’s going to have ramifications for the general 
public for some considerable time to come. 

 
CHAIRPERSON:   All right, well Mr Radich, you are here representing CERA 20 

today.  If you’d be good enough to take that concern back and pass it 
on please? 

 
  [2.15 pm] 
 25 
MR ENGLISH:   Thank you sir, I have it noted. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   I am not sure that anyone would disagree with you. 
 
MR ENGLISH:   Thank you. 30 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   Did you want to say something as well, Ms Broughton?  

Did you say you wanted to something at the end too? 
 
MS BROUGHTON:   No. 35 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   Okay, thank you.  There is two other matters we just need 

to clear up today it is those three matters from annexure and also the 
suggested 1A that we have not had a response on just by asking for it. 

 40 
MR WINCHESTER:   Sir, those three matters are temporary activities, repair 

and rebuild of multiunit housing and the exemplar housing project.  In 
terms of the first two of those matters there are a relatively limited 
number of submissions and submitters involved in those particular 
issues. 45 
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 They appear to the council to be not necessarily trifling matters but 
more mechanical matters and as such what the council was going to 
propose to the people who have submitted on those matters is to 
commence mediation with a view to trying to put together an agreed 
package of rules and provisions which may with any luck and 5 
depending upon whether that satisfies the Panel, either remove the need 
for a hearing or significantly truncate it. 

 
CHAIRPERSON:   Do you wish us to facilitate and mediate it for you, and you 

may like to think whether because those submitters are not necessarily 10 
here today, whether we should exercise our directory power for this 
mediation? 

 
MR WINCHESTER:   I will take some instructions on that, sir.  I would hope 

given the identity of those submitters, most of whom are, for example 15 
Southern Response, and reasonably significant entities that they would 
think that it was sensible that they tried to mediate those matters rather 
than proceed to a hearing, but if we need to return to the Panel for a 
direction we are definitely grateful for your offer about that. 

 20 
CHAIRPERSON:   We did not speak about this over the luncheon adjournment 

and of course they are planning ahead for the next stage.  I mean all the 
focus is on this first bit and it is fair to say although the timelines are 
very tight, once we get past this first bit there is a little more flexibility, 
but we were going to be pulling out now we have agreed the first 25 
schedule of hearing dates, for pre-hearings and hearings of those other 
matters so that you can work towards them.  We will be notifying the 
next chapter which is Natural Hazards a pre-hearing date and a hearing 
date for that as well at the same time. 

 30 
 I am glad that this is the approach being taken, I am sure the Panel will 

all be pleased to hear that.  If you need us to help you with a mediator 
or to do this in a directory sense if you would just file a memorandum 
and we can probably deal with it by a conference call rather than 
convening another meeting. 35 

 
MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, and I appreciate that sir, that indication is very 

helpful. 
 
 In terms of the exemplar housing issue obviously the manner in which 40 

that has been identified as a priority matter remains at large.  There 
does not appear to be a particular appetite for seeking to revisit whether 
it should indeed be a priority matter so it seems that there may be a 
need for a hearing in respect of that issue as indicated previously.  It is 
quite discrete in that there is only one exemplar housing project as 45 
defined in existence at the present time and that is Halswell. 
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 I think to the extent that it may turn into somewhat of a spot zoning 

issue again a mediated approach to try and narrow down one the scope, 
and two the areas of agreement and disagreement would be sensible for 
that matter and it maybe in fact and I will take instructions on this that 5 
we seek those directions irrespective just for the Panel’s benefit 
primarily. 

 
CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you, I think what would be useful if the path you are 

pursuing is totally successful in both these areas, and it obviates a need 10 
for a hearing, the sooner we know about that the better because it 
would enable us to bring “natural hazards” for example forward, and 
that’s a matter I know of a great moment to the city but also a great 
moment to an awful number of citizens, and the sooner we can get onto 
that the better so if it did allow us, because it doesn’t fall under the 28 15 
February deadline, but if these other the matters are narrowed or 
shortened or reach a stage where a hearing isn’t necessary, it would 
certainly give us some scope to bring that chapter which quite 
understandably has attracted a great deal of interest. 

 20 
  [2.20 pm] 
 
MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, sir. And obviously that’s in the Council’s interest 

to – given that it’s funding this process to be – trying to make it as 
efficient as possible, so we will definitely give the panel notice as soon 25 
as possible if, if these issues tend to - - -  

 
CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you. 
 
MR WINCHESTER:   - - - may, may fall away. As to the final matter you 30 

raised which is the possibility of bringing the forward the phase 1A 
matters to an earlier notification and hearing, that matter has been put 
to the relevant Council subcommittee who has considered the pros and 
cons and primarily because the – what would be truncated in terms of 
the process is the time available for public consultation has on balance 35 
decided that it would not be comfortable with - - -  

 
CHAIRPERSON: Well we are only talking about the part chapters, which 

again I repeat, I still have difficulty understanding why there are ever 
part chapters. It’s quite bizarre to be honest and that’s all we are talking 40 
about in this so, not the substantive matters - the completion of stuff 
that probably should have been complete at the beginning. 

 
MR WINCHESTER:   Sir, I understand what you’re saying. The - - -  
 45 
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CHAIRPERSON:   I mean, we have no power to order this, but there are other 
routes available. 

 
MR WINCHESTER:   Understood, sir, and I suppose the only thing I can say 

is, you’ve heard from a couple of submitters this morning, concerns 5 
about ability to participate effectively in the process, and understand 
the nature of the provisions, which are being proposed. And from 
elected members perspective they have concern about that and that has 
driven their current position. 

 10 
CHAIRPERSON:   All right, well we understand that and we will take that on 

board in our consideration. 
 
MR WINCHESTER:   Thank you, sir. 
 15 
CHAIRPERSON:  Mr Radich, just on those early smaller matters, can you 

confirm the position that’s been outlined? 
 
MR RADICH:   I have not had a chance to take instructions although I had a 

quick chat with my learned friend about it during the break but have 20 
not been able to go back, but there’s – I think that – yes, I did that it – 
yes. 

 
CHAIRPERSON:   Good. 
 25 
MR RADICH:   I think I have confirmation, sir. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you. 
 
MR RADICH:   Could I just ask in the event that any hearing time is needed, is 30 

there an ability to give an indication at this early stage or is that getting 
ahead of ourselves, just in terms of - - -  

 
CHAIRPERSON:   No, no, no, we had – we have provisionally talked about a 

date which was - - -  35 
 
MR………:  13th and 14th. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   13/14 and 15 January. 
 40 
MR RADICH:   13/14 and 15, okay, thank you. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   Is there anybody else here involved in those hearings that 

have anything to say? 
 45 
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MR VAN DER WAL:  Sir, Hans van der Wal for Faulks, my client has made 
some submissions on the temporary activities. I just wish to indicate 
that and my client clearly would wish to participate with any mediation 
– would cooperate and does not require directions to do so, but is 
appreciative of the ability to file a memorandum should it consider that, 5 
that would be helpful. 

 
 And the other – only other point I wish to raise is that there are some 

potential overlaps between the strategic directions, the broader issues 
and my client’s particular submissions on the temporary activities and 10 
it may be that there are some timing issues in knowing which way the 
broader issues may go that may give some further certainty in terms of 
which way my client would go in terms of the temporary activity, sir. 

 
CHAIRPERSON:  I’m not sure that we are going to be in a position to do that, 15 

however, given the, the deadline and we’ve got to get the hearings out 
the road and the decisions they are going to have be parallel courses. I 
take on board what you are saying and we will do what we can, but that 
may play out during the strategic directions’ hearing and you may well 
– you may well get a steer from what happens there, okay. 20 

 
  [2.25 pm] 
 
MR VAN DER WAL:   Thank you, sir. 
 25 
CHAIRPERSON:   Is there anyone else? Yes, Ms Steven’s. 
 
MS STEVEN:   Yes, I am representing St George's who are also submitters on 

temporary activities, but I can’t forward the direction that has been 
discussed. 30 

 
CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you. All right. 
 
 Has anybody got any other matters that the panel might - - -  
 35 
MR THOMAS: Yes, I just needed to indicate, sir, in terms of, if the parties 

wanted assisted mediation for the smaller hearings, the temporary 
activities and multi-unit residential and the exemplars, if that was 
required we have a court mediator available, 16th, 17th, 18th, so it’s – 
our strategic directions’ hearing may – excuse me – not be fully quite 40 
complete, but that those four days we have a mediator available if 
required. 

 
CHAIRPERSON:  And subject to availability of parties obviously if we are 

still doing strategic directions. 45 
 



 Page 46 

  
The Atrium, Fern Room, Christchurch 13.11.14 

MR THOMAS:   That’s right. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:  Yes, all right, thank you. Is there anything any of you 

represented parties wish to raise? 
 5 
MR LE MARQUAND:  If I may just raise a matter of clarification I suppose, 

in relation to the submissions and the numbering, there’s no numbering 
of submission points and there’s obviously been a series of further 
submissions that have been made on various matters and, I guess my 
experience to date for instance when one goes into mediation and the – 10 
on the Initial Plan, it is actually quite useful to ensure that people who 
are talking have at least some sort of scope. 

 
 But if there’s no sort of linkage to sort of numbering, there is a danger 

that people start having views on everything, which can slow the 15 
process down. So I am just wondering if there was any intention down 
the track to go back through and work out the numbering and the 
linkages in relation to further submissions. So the panel presumably has 
to have some means of tracking that somewhere in terms of making 
decisions. 20 

 
CHAIRPERSON:   I think we can get an update on that. 
 
MR THOMAS:   Yes, the database that the City Council has been putting in 

place, which we have been testing, retesting and retesting and refining, 25 
further submissions are going in there now, they are being attached to 
submission points. 

 
 So not only as a tool for the panel but also for parties, we should be 

able to make available for each hearing an output report from that, that 30 
has submission points, at least by relief is generally the most succinct 
way plus further submissions attached to them so that you – that tool is 
not only available to the panel and advisors but to parties. 

 
MR LE MARQUAND:   Thank you. 35 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   Anything else on – from any of the - - -  
 
MR LE MARQUAND: Yes, sir, can I – may indulge again, you mention 

before video conferencing and sort of knocked that on the head, but I 40 
understand there might be some new premises that are – where these 
things are going to be heard, and I just wondered what potential 
facilities there may be in relation to the new place. 

 
CHAIRPERSON:  What I knocked on the head was, with large groups, I’m not 45 

prepared to contemplate telephone. 
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MR LE MARQUAND:   No, okay. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   Because it just gets totally out of control - - -  
 5 
MR LE MARQUAND:   Yes, I understand that, sir, but - - -  
 
CHAIRPERSON:   - - - depending how many people there are, if there are only 

one or two that’s possible, and it will have video conferencing facilities 
at the - - -  10 

 
MR LE MARQUAND:   Okay. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:   - - - new premises which we are meant to be able to occupy 

the week after next I am assured, which will make life a lot easier for 15 
everybody, for those who do not know it is Manchester Street number?  

 
MS……….:   348. 
 
CHAIRPERSON:  348 Manchester Street, and it will be fully Wi-Fi’ed and it 20 

will have video conferencing facilities, so we can then consider the use 
of that in the appropriate circumstances. 

 
MR LE MARQUAND:   Thank you, sir. 
 25 
CHAIRPERSON:   Anything else? Anything else from over here? 
 
 All right, well thank you and I hope if necessary any of the lay 

submitters can utilise the presence of the friends of the submitter today 
and we look forward to seeing you all when the hearings commence. I 30 
am grateful for the extent of the – all the panel are grateful, to the 
extended cooperation we have had from you today, it has made what 
has been identified a terribly tight timetable and one that is imposed on 
us, much, much easier when we get that level of cooperation. 

 35 
  [2.30 pm] 
 
 If issues arise don’t hesitate to file a memorandum making application 

if need be.  If it’s a matter of true urgency you can always arrange to 
make a direct oral application to me through the secretariat.  Thank 40 
you. 

 
MATTER ADJOURNED AT 2.30 PM UNTIL 
TUESDAY, 2 DECEMBER 2014 
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